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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee) -

Trustees’ report - ‘
for the year.ended 31 August 2021 -

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
“charitable company for the year-end 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’
report, and a-directors’ report under company law. -

The Odyssey Trust for Education (OTE) was formed in September 2018 to bring together a high performing

" selective girls grammar school and a local mixed secondary modern school. It was driven by the desire of the
leadership and governors of Townley Grammar to have a greater impact on the lives and life chances of young
people in the community. At its heart is a belief in the transformational power of a high-quality education, the
value of diversity and the need for collaboration if we are to change lives and change the world.

The Trust derives its name from the classical poem by Homer, referenced in the Tennyson poem “Ulysses”
which describes the journey.home of Odysseus after the Trojan War. He and his crew overcome many
difficulties and challenges and the motto of the Trust is taken from the poem: “One equal temper of heroic
hearts” We recognise that, like our young peodple, we are on a journey that will have many challenges and will
often seem uncertain. This “Odyssey” is an ambitious and courageous undertaking, and we wish our students to
possess that same ambition and courage, to work together to achieve their goals, to overcome their fears and to
‘realise that it is through embracing our struggles with optimism that we truly live. .

The trust operates two secondary schools, Townley Grammar School in Bexleyheath and King Henry School in
- Erith. Our schools have a combmed pupil roll of 3199 in the 2020 census.

Structure, governance and management.
a. Constitution
The g'cademy trust is a charitable company Iimited'by guarantee and an exempt charity.

' The charitable companies memorandum and articles of association are the pnmary governing documents of the
Academy Trust. 4 :

The Trustees of Odyssey Trust for Educatron are also the dlrectors of the charrtable company for the purposes of
company law. 4

The charitable company is known as Odyssey Trust for Education. -

" Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these acoounts are approved are included in
the Reference and admlnlstratlve details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable co‘mpany in the
-event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be requnred not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be '
a member. .

c. Trustees' indemnities

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the Academy Trust maintains Trustees and Officers'
liability insurance which gives appropriate cover for any liability incurred or legal action brought against themin -
connection with their acting in capacity as trustees of the Academy Trust.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021 -
Structure, governance and management (continued)

d. Method of rect'uitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The management of the Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are eIected and co- opted under the terms
of the Artlcles of Association and funding agreement. . -

" The term of office for any Trustee or Governor is 4 years. The Prin>cipal s term of office runs paralIAeI with his/her
term of appointment. Subject to remaining ellglble to be a particular type of Trustee and Governor, either may be
reappomted or re-elected.

Members

Odyssey Trust has five Members who have the power to appomt and remove Trustees in certain circumstances,
and are the initial subscribers to the Trust's Articles of Assomatlon

Trustees

The Trust has engaged with. Academy Ambassadors during the year to recruit Trustees in the d|$C|pl|nes of
marketlng law and HR. .

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

“The training and induction provided for new Trustees and Governors will depend on their individual experience
and expertise. Where necessary an induction will provide training on charlty and educational, legal and financial
matters.

All new Trustees and Governors are given a tour of the Trust and the chance to meet with staff and students. All

~Trustees/Governors are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, budgets, plans-and other
documents that they will need to understand their role as trustees and directors of the trust.

f. Organisational structure

The Trust has established a management structure to enable its effC|ent running. The structure consists of two

. levels: The Trust Board and the Executive Team

The Trust Board has considered its role tho_‘ughtfully and decided that the role of the Trustees is to approve the
strategic direction and objectives of the trust and monitor-its progress towards these objectives.

The Trust Board has approved a scheme of delegation which sets out a statement on the system of internal
control, responsibilities, financial matrix and terms of reference. The CEO is directly responsible for the day-to-
day operation of the Trust. The Headteachers are directly responsible for the day to day running of each school
and are assisted by ‘a senior Ieadershlp team. .

Trustees are respon5|b|e for the strategic vision, agreeing an annual ptan and budget, monitoring the academies
by use of budgets and making major dec15|ons about the direction of the Trust, including capital expenditure and
senior. staff appountments

The Chief Executive assumes the accounting officer role.
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Odyssey Trust for Education:
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021 .
Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for settlng pay and remuneratron of key management personnel

Following consultation with Browne Jacobson the review of th_e Chlef:Executlve and leadership team's pay will be
based on improving the educational and financial performance of the Trust. This will be reviewed annually in line
with their performance review and meeting of set objectives. The Trust will also conduct an annual bench

~ -marking exercise to help inform the Chief Executive’s pay scale. ‘

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year . -
. Full-time equivalent employee number : 4

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time » Number of
employees

% | | o 3
1%-50% _ ] Co.
51%-99% o 1
100% B . . , . R

- Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time , - ‘ . £
Total cost of facility time - ) - ' . .17,679
Total pay bill : ' : 16,837,000
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facrllty time R L ‘ 0.11 %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facrlity time _ 010 %
hours o

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

“There were no related party fransactions in this financial year During the year the Chief Executlve Officer played
an active role in developing links with other Trusts serving the young people of Bexley, to share best practice and

__negotiation of issues of common. A number of connections were made when exploring the opportunities for the
growth of the Multi Academy Trust. The Trust also continued to forge links with community groups including
Bexley Women'’s Aid, the Bexley Irish Community and the led on the Bexiey Gypsy Roma Traveller project. The

" CEO presented to other organisations on the Trust including Public Policy Projects. :

.- Bexley Association of School Leaders — Both Headteachers members.

. Local authority — Children’s Young People's Improvement Partnership Board

. Headteacher Briefings

» - Fair Access Panel: King Henry School has representation on the Secondary Falr Access Panel’

/
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee) .

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)
j. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

‘Where appropriate the Trust consults on matters such as policy, pay, health, safety and welfare with the relevant
support staff and teaching trade unions. The Trust provides information to employees generally by way of email,
memoranda and staff meetings. At each of the schools, information is channeled via the SLT meetings.
Employees are encouraged to familiarise themselves with Ofsted reports, available from the Trust website and
student progress and attalnment statistics when they are made avarlable

It is the Trust's policy to ensure equality of opportunities is afforded to staff, students and other stakeholders.
Training, career development and promotion opportunities are avaliable to all employees.

- Applications for employment by disabled persons are given full and fair consideration for all vacancies in
accordance with their particular aptitude and abilities. In the event of employees becoming disabled then every
- effort is made to retrain them in order that their- employment within the Tru'st-may continue.

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in.a business relationship with the acad‘emy trust

Our suppliers are important to the trust to ensure continuity of the trust operational line through the provision of
supplies need to support education deliver and operational needs. The Board'’s approach includes ensuring that
all supply and procurement process were fair, transparent and in line with statutory provisions. This allows for
suppliers to be dealt with evenly through the development of pohcy and processes which facilitates this
approach .

Community / wider society

The areas within which each of our schools are located act as the conduit through which the Trust’s schools

- foster community cohesion. The Trust appointed a Director of Arts, Culture and Community to support
community activities and as a result led a'successful bid for a Local Cultural Education Partnership (LCEP). The
Trust is also represented on the Bexley Music Hub. The CEO has led developments nationally on race and
diversity, writing for the Chartered College of Teachlng on creating a more diverse workforce and presenting on
changes to discriminatory hair policies.

The Board considers the views of the community important to the effective operation and continuity of the trust.
The process involves periodic assessment locally and centrally. This allows for the Board to better understand
the impact of the trust to the community and the further development of any policy or process that ensures the
continuity of the trust’s positive impact.

"The Board is starting a systematic process for considering each school within the Trust in detail during its-annual
“cycle of meetings. The process of collecting the relevant material to undertake this review is collaborative and
involves active engagement between an assigned Trustee and the Local Governing Board Chair. This will‘help
ensure that the Board are relevant informed of stakeholder opinions and any relevant issues which concern its
schools’ communities.

Regulators

Regulators ensure the trust is operating within the confines of the lawin the delivery of its educational provision.
The Board's approach is that the Accounting Officer and designated staff retain direct operational responsublllty
for ensuring compliance and effective communication with the trust regulators A
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee) :

‘Trustees' report (continued) :
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The‘principal object and activity of Odyssey Trust for Education is to provide a broad and balanced education for
" pupils of all abilities. The Trustees have referred to the guidance issued by the Charity Commtssnon in respect of
public benefit when reviewing the aims and objectives of the Trust.

" In accordance with the articles of association, the trust has adopted a "Scheme of Government” approved by the
Secretary of State. The Scheme of Government is part of the wider 'Master Funding Agreement' between the
Company and the Secretary of State and 'Supplemental Funding Agreements’ for each Academy. The Scheme
of Government specifies, amongst other things, that the Trust's Academies will be at the heart of their
communities promoting community cohesion and sharing facilities, that the curriculum should-be broad and
balanced; there will be an emphasis on the needs of individual pupils including pupils with SEN; and the basis for .
charging pupils.

Our strategic aims are:

“+To create an organlzatlonal structure that is able to fulfil its mission in changing contexts
+ Achieve the best possible outcomes for all our young people and the communmes we serve
» To build strong and effective leadership and governance

We therefore have three Big Priorities:

+ Financial Strength and Stability-
- Improved educational outcomes across the Trust
+ Recruit, Retain & Train the best people

b. Objectives, strategies and activities
Odyssey Mission Objectives

The purpose of the Odyssey Trust for Education is to broaden opportunity and drive social mobility for young
people, regardless of background or ability, ensuring that no student is left behind.

Leave no student behind

Ensuring through a meaningful understanding of our commumtles our students and our context that we can help
them to overcome the barriers they may face now and in their futures. We achieve this by providing the fullest
possible education to all by targeted support and meanlngful challenge.

Serve our communities
Understanding and engaging with our communities in their nchness and dlverS|ty Students their famllles and
the wider community within which they live and grow. .

Address inequalities in education : :

Recognizing that like the wider society education both creates mequalltles and helps to address them. Through
bringing the full range of opportunities to all students in the Trust and developrng the necessary skills, knowledge
and experiences we both provide the door and the means to open it. ‘

Create great places to work

Acknowledging that it is through our people that we achieve great things. Therefore we mvest in those that work
within the Trust, we: care for them and we enable them to grow.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
. for the year ended 31 August 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)

From binary to spectrum thmkmg
We affirm that the problems we face are complex with multlple causes and solutions. CoIIaboratl’on requnres
trust, understandung and an open hand. Through this we work together with common purpose.

Strategy for Achlevmg these objectives

We intend to achieve these objectives through building systems and structures that work and are sustainable.

" Investing in our people. Building exemplary Inclusion practice. Standardising and centralising essential elements.
Focusing on Research and Evidence based practice and meaningful and tangible collaboration. All of this built
on great Ieadershlp and governance.

c. Public benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty set out in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2011 to have
due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

a. Promoting the success of the Trust

- Odyssey Trust for Education is governed by its charltable objects as setoutin its Artlcles of Assocnatlon these
also set the purpose of the trust. .

: AII decisions and activities of the trust take into account how we best deliver our long-term goals and are driven
by our strategic aims. All decisions we make as a trust, from our operational teams through to the Trust Board,
~are made in the best interests of our pupils who are our main beneficiaries, and in the knowledge, we are
accountable to them, their parents, regulators and our staff.
The Board considers that they have adhered to the requirements of section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, (the
"Act") and have, in good faith, acted in a way that they consider would be most likely to promote the success of
the trust for the benefit of its key stakeholders and, in doing so, have had regard to and recognised the
importance of considering all stakeholders-and other matters (as set out in s.172(1)(a-f) of the Act) in its
decision-making. Our Trust-Board consists of a broad mix of individuals from different backgrounds including
educational experts plus well-established commercial successes in areas such project management, finance,
accountancy and financial risk management. Our Trust Board and Local Govermng Boards are made up of
individuals who are also from the local communities where our schools are situated.

The Board and local governing bodies have approved a number of policies that help to ensure the sefety of our
pupils and staff, as well as those that ensure the integrity of our business conduct.

Upon appointment, trustees and governors are briefed on their duties and responsibilities under the Companies
" Act and the trust’s Articles of Association and Scheme of Delegation: The Trust Board and Local Governing
Boards are entitled to request from the Trust Executive Team and schools ‘all such information they may
reasonably require in order to be able to perform their duties. On-going training is available to the governors, as
required, to ensure that their knowledge remains up to date and they continue to be able to discharge their
duties. :

For all decision making at Board level, discussion takes place around employee impact and impact on other
stakeholders, such as pupils, parents and the local community. The relevance of each stakeholder group may
vary by réference to the issue in question, so the Board seeks to understand the needs of each -stakeholder
group and any potential conflicts as part of its decision-making. The Trust's Executive team and Senior Leaders
ensure the Trust Board and Local Governing Boards are fully focused on the impacts to each stakeholder group.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ repoi't (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

b. Progress against our stated aims

To create an organizational structure that is able to fulfil its mission in changing contexts

Engage with local, national and international communities '

-The Trust began the year with multiple international engagemeénts particularly developing ties with China. While
travel was restricted during the year we have continued to forge partnership with our international partners. KHS
has particularly focused on engaging with its community through regular communications and both schools havev
successfully heId wrtual parents’ evenings and open events. :

‘Setting a common vision and culture whilst maintaining local autonomy in d‘elivery
The Trust vision has been developed and been included in the induction of new staff. A Trust website has been
created and vision statements and logos revised.

Generate efflclencles and freeing up school resources to allow greater focus on teaching and learning
The appointment of an interim COO waorking with CFO enabling the Trust to more efficiently plan resources.

Build a network of schools with a standardised, guaranteed offer with each with their own identity;

The two current schools within the Trust have distinct characters but with a common school day, curriculum
-structure and teaching standards and practice. A Central Education Team (CET) under the leadership of our
Director of Education oversees Inclusion, Standards and Progress, Post 16 and Arts and Culture. These are led
by -Directors who work with collaborative Boards from within the Trust developing strategy, implementing
improvement activity and providing quality assurance.

Centralising functions from a business berspective around finance, data, workforce
We have centralised key functions including ICT, HR, IT and Finance. We have been developing centralised
data systems including common management information packages. _

Create consistent pedagogy across all schools, Quality First Teachlng

The Director of Standards and Progress, part'of the CET, leads the development of Teachmg and Learning,
utilising Trust Lead Practitioners and external agencies. Working collaboratively with the Director of Inclusion and
senior teams within our schools this has ensured common practice and expectations.

Establish Research and Development teams in each school and invest in professional growth and
Development

Teaching and Learnmg teams have been recreated as Research and Development Teams within each school as
part of our drive to base strategic decision on evidence based research, ensuring d|SC|pI|ned innovation and the
best use of resources. :

Develop teaching with the support of Edueation Bbards based on active and up'to date research
As above we have engaged with current research in developing our pedagogy while beginning to conduct our
own research. A key element has been the inclusion of Roshenshine’s principles into all teaching.

Promoting high quallty, shared CPD which leads to outstandlng teaching
Joint CPD sessions across the Trust have been established and dedicated time within the school week has -
ensured continuous and regularitralmng and develo_pment. Thls has continued on fine during the pandemic.

Leave no pupil behind through providing a fully inclusive education

Our Inclusion Strategy has involved the ongoing reorganisation of inclusion teams provudlng well tramed and
strategically deployed staff in schools. Our inclusion centre, Motum, was completed last year and will be fully
online in the next academic year, providing-specialist provision for students struggling in mainstream education.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

. Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Centralised School Improvement Teams (Pendulum Team) supportlng teachers & co-ordinating an
outstanding network of education leaders. - .
This team has now become the Central Education Team. Structures supporting school improvement have been
re-designed to enable greater collaborative commitment towards Trust goals and support a shift in culture and
approach towards-a collectrve responsibility for outcomes.

The Central Education Team (CET) has been firmly established as part of the school improvement model and .
we have recruited four exceptional leaders to lead Collaborative Boards on the strategic direction of: Standards
and Progress; Inclusion and Student Wellbeing, Arts and Culture and Post-16-and Careers. A further
Collaborative Board on Curriculum and Assessment is being lead collectively by the Director of Education and

. the Headteachers of Trust schools. '

Each Board has co-created a Strategic Implementation Plan for this academic year (SIP) progress towards thrs
. plan is being monitored by Trust Directors at 100 stage check points across the year and is a collective
responsibility of all Board members. SIPs have been structured to focus attentions within the classroom, across
the Trust and beyond into our comimunities, recognising that school improvement goals, sustainability and
financial viability will be met through partnershlps and networks from both with and beyond our immediate
communities.

The Director of Education and CET are working collaboratively with senior leaders from across Trust schools to
develop the skills of system leadership and support the pillars of |mprovement set out by the CEO. This will
characterize our approach to all future school improvement.

To build strong and effective leadership and governance

Focus on continual staff training and recruitment together with leadership development :
Regular and frequent CPD programmes are in place for staff. King Henry School was fully staffed during the
year, and operated its first full year under the new Ieadershrp team. .

Creating local governlng bodies to engage members of the local community and “reap the benefits” of
their support.

Trust Schools now have a complete Governing Bodles with ded|cated governors representlng communltles A
training programme is in place for all governors. :

Recruit local governors for both schools, recruitment strategy for Trustees
An ongoing programme of recruitment for governors and Trustees continues. The Trust has introduced
succession planning for Trustees, recruiting from within Local Governing Bodies where appropriate.

Create high calibre leadership teams with regular training and development

Trust schools have highly capable leadership teams. This includes the appointment of two new Headteachers in
‘each 'school in addition to a wide spread of leadership positions within King Henry School. All leaders undergo
training and external providers have been used to support, mentor and coach key leaders within the Trust. -

Use of quality external support in key areas e.g. HR, leadership, data .
The Trust has used targeted support in the areas of legal, HR, recruitment, Performance Management Reviews,
Marketing, leadership training and pedagogy We continue to use external support in specialist areas and as part
of the training of our teams.

‘Page 10



Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)

for the year'ended 31 August 2021

" Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)
King Henry School

Performance KS4

HISTORICAL KPI's Year 11,

2017 2018 2019

2020

2021

Page 11

Attainment 8 7399 | 7367 73.65 75.9 78.2
| Progress 8 5 0.81 0.83 0.73 1.1 0.75
'9-4 English 99.52 100 | 99.52 100 100 |
9-4 Maths . 100| 99.52| 99.05 100 100
9-5 English 98.09 95.05 100 100 ||
9-5 Maths 98.09| 9333| 9856| 99.55
9.7 English - 89.47| 8667| .93.84| 97.73
9-7 Maths : A 61.72| 59.52| 7225| 7364
9-4 English & Maths 99.52 | ~ 100 95 99 100
9-5 English & Maths 96 93 98.| 99.55

| 2007 | 2008 | 2000 | 2020 | 2021
A8 » s 3608} 37.07] 3637 38.84 40
P8 | 071] -077] o0s8 0.5 N/A
' % Cohort
9-4 Epg. v 58% 66% | 58% | 64% 64%
| 9-4 Maths 55% 55% 60% 62% 65%
9-5 £ng | 39% 6% | 44% 46% 37%
9-5 Maths ? 31% 33% | 39% 40% 34%
9-7 Eng : % 4% 10% 7% 7% 7%
9.7 Maths 4% 5% | 6% | 7% 6%
| 9.4 English & Maths L 44% 45% | s0% 51% 55%
| 9-5 English & Maths ' 23% 29% . 31% 30% 31%
EbaccEntry 5.45% 5.19% | 7.46% | 39.92% | 10.8%S%
[ Ebacc Standard 4+ in sll Ebacc N 4.49% 2.60% | .3.39% | 15.13% 44,79%
| Ebacc Strong 5+ in all Ebacc | 3.53% 1.30% | 1.36% | 5.88% TBC




Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and perfbrmance_ (continued)

5 Grade 5+ 100 98.09 96.67 | 98.58| 99.55

5 Grade 5+Inc Eng & : o . :
Maths 95.65 92.86|. 97.16 95.05

Ebacc Entry 88.04 83.25 .. 77.14 83.41 82.73
Ebacc Standard pass 52.78 75.9 70.48 82.46 82.27
Ebacc Strong pass 80.86 70.33 61.43 76.78 77.73
9-8 ‘ : 33.68 38.8| 42.37| 48.04| 59.04
S-7 65.18 63.99 | 63.55 72.94 82.46
54 98.83 94.86 97.71 99.82 ©99.759

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Cohort 218 250 2081 - 284 243
Female 187 199 164 223 202
Male 259 51 44 61 . 41
Total No. of
Entries 643 652 . 533 861 723
Total Pass 643 643 | - 527 861 - 722
% Pass 100 98.62 98.87 100 | 99.86
ALevel APS 37.71
A*/A Grades . 209 202 203 440 484
A*/A % ’ - 32.5 31.03 38.09 | 51.1| 66.94
A*-B Grades 438 - 391 363 686 635
A*-B% 68.11 60.06 68.11 79.67 87.83
A*-C Grades 579| 546| 470 816 696
A*-C% ) 50.04 83.87 88.18 94.77 96.27
Cohort Score 32.68 33.91 44.05 47.12

' C+ C+ B+ A-

|
A _—
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (eontinued)

The Senior leadership team of Townley Grammar School (TGS) and King Henry School (KHS) have efféctively
managed the demands of Covid, maintaining a full and rich curriculum offer for its students despite the
restrictions. Staffing remained stable, attendance was high and the popularity of the school at Year 7 and 6th
Form entry only increased. The senior team, working with colleagues at KHS ensured internal assessments were
moderated and reflected fair and accurate outcomes for students in the absence of external assessments.

The school, despite having to suspend the majority of international work managed to apply for ands secure
significant funding from the Turing Scheme to advance its international opportunities. A testament to the high -
quality and diversity of the school’'s engagement with international partners, supported through its unique
curriculum offer which includes International Relations.

The school is well placed for the next academic year to further advance outcomes for students and build upon
the its past successes.

c. Principal decisions

For the year ending 31 August 2021 the Trust consider that the following are examples of principal decisions that
it made in the year. This is not intended to be an exhaustive list of board decisions but instead hlghllghts areas of
significant impact:

The interim positions of CFO and COO were converted to a successful appointment of a permanent CFO and
the ending of the interim COO contract. The latter role being subsumed into the CEO and CFO roles.

The Central Education Team'’s work has proved instrumental in advancing the aims of the Trust through
strategic support of leadership at both schools. The use of Collaborative Boards consisting of senior leaders
.across the Trust and led by the Directors from the Central Team have been hlghly effective in advancing
collaboratlve strategic working.

Headteachers at both schools‘were ably supported by the CEO/Executive Headteacher through an induction
programme and mentoring including external support for performance reviews. Their ability as new
Headteachers to manage the schools through Covid is a reflection of that Trust support. Notwithstanding this the
Trust recognises that success relies upon teams not individuals and so has continued to invest in high quality
~ professional development and collaborative working practices. In this was the Trust secures the long term

sustainability of Trust schools. :

Trustees and Chairs of Governors came together in the summer term for a Strategic Planning Weekend to
review the strategic priorities of the Trust. These have been agreed and the strategic plan will be finalised in the
next academic year.

d. Covid-19 Disclosure '

During COVID-19 Odyssey Trust for Education schools have continued to provide an educatlonal service to
schools both to those in schools and those self-isolating in line with guidance issued by the Department of
_ Educatlon (DfE). , .

The safety and wellbeing of pupils both in school has been prioritised with vulnerable pupils and families
supported with visits, online meetings and daily phone calls during school closures or self-isolation periods. The
period from January to March 2021 generated uncertainty with financial forecasts including a loss of income from
private hire of facilities. The trust incurred significant cost, but this was offset by savings in educational resources
and other supplies costs. This period was also uncertain and delayed plans for staffing reviews as part of the
ongoing financial planning. A claim was made for £23k premises, PPE and sanitising, social distance equipment
/ signage and a further £44k for workforce costs. There were no staff furloughed during the 2020-21 academic

. year. The impact of COVID-19 has a continued effect on forward financial planning. Each school introduced its
own comprehensive COVID-19 care plan that is regularly updated by each school’s senior leadership team.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued) .

for the year ended 31 August 2021.
Strategi'c report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued) A

Since the start of the pandemic, the following have also occurred:

. The increased workload of staff to ensure that the risks associated with the transmission of COVID-19 is
. appropriately managed in line with government guidelines. '
e Management of the challenges associated with reopening of trust schools during the partial lockdown

period and the full reopening in March 2020. These ongoing management includes devising operable staff
rostering system, issues assomated pupil year groups and staff absences and the risks of closure.

. . Managing and addressing the ongoing impact caused by the dlsruptlon to educatlonal outcomes for pupils
(especially vulnerable and dlsadvantaged pupils).

Financial review
a. Reserves Policy

A minimum of 3% of recurring government revenue grants, held in total between total unrestricted and restricted
revenue funds'should be deemed appropriate as minimum level of funds retained for. these purposes. The trust
reserves have fallen significantly at 31 August 2021, with unrestricted funds remaining of £218,990, is at 1% of -
revenue grants. The funding requirements as outlined in the going concern basis, means that a target minimum
level of reserves approx. £550,000 should be established in the forward plan at future year ends. Generation of
unrestricted income should continue to support this policy. The gomg concern basis outlines the engagement
with the ESFA on funding in order to support these aims. ,
The Academy Trust's current free reserves have fallen below the 3% stated within the policy as a direct result of
historic restructuring costs of the central team that was initially put in place to support Trust growth and school
improvement.

The Board of Trustées-’ and Key Management Personnel are currently working to implement the _
recommendations of it's SRMA visit and extensive action has been.taken to restructure the Trust's staff and
reduce it's costs, the full benefit of which they are expecting to see within the 2021-22 financial year.

:

b. Investment policy

. The Trust policy is to invest surplus funds in low-risk short term bank deposits with its Bank for example 32-day
-deposit account and Reserves'accounts. This is most prudent and risk averse considering the' budget
constraints.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

‘Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

c. Principal risks and uncenainiies

The Trust is exposed to the following risks:

*External Risk: Arising from the external environment, not wholly within the organisation’s control, but-
where action can be taken to mitigate the risk

+Social Risk: change in 'demographics in population. -

*Operational Risk: Relating to delivery of current activities and building capacity and capability
Change Risk: Created by decisions to pursue new endeavours beyond current capability

Principal risks and uncertainties identified that concern the Trust are: -

-+ COVID-19 '
« Insufficient staff to open school to run safely .
* No funding from central government to meet additional costs incurred both staffng and cleaning consumables.

+ Data breaches.’

+ Systems hacking. ' B , -

« Change in PAN at King Henry School.

. *» Ability to secure funding from the ESFA to address legacy issues at King Henry School.

» Any increase to Local Government Pension Scheme contribution rates.

* Local Authority top slicing, via Trust's Forum, of AWPU to fund High Needs expenditure

" Ofsted inspections of each school under the new framework . ¢

d. Results for the year

The majority of the Academy Trusts income arises in the form of recurrent grants from the ESFA. The use of this
income is restricted to the particular purpose of the grant. The grants received from the ESFA in the year to 31
August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial
Activities. During the year total income was £21,370,160 of WhICh £520,537 was unrestricted income,

*Total expenditure was £23,429,854, of which:

o Staff employment costs of £17,901,840 which represented 77% of total expendlture

o Premises related costs of £2,392,893 which represented 10% of total expenditure

o Energy related costs of £347 808 WhICh represented 1% of total expenditure

The operating deficit; excluding the pension reserves adjustments, for the year ended 31 August 2021, was
£2,059,694. This mcludes a depre0|atlon charge for the year of £1,366,957.

The Academy Trust's level of free reserves is £218,990 as at 31 August 2021 whlch includes unrestncted
funds of £218,990. The Trust also has £N|| of free capital reserves.

The Trustees monitor the financial position of each School individually in terms of its on-going surplus and future

_predicted income and expenditure, considering that educational funding is likely to reduce. The Trustees will
review the position constantly to ensure that each individual school has sufficient income to operate on an
efficient basis without affectlng the.quality of teachlng and learning.

e. Deficit .

The restricted fund (excluding the restricted fixed asset fund) at 31 August 2021 is in deficit by £7,802,000. This
arises from the pension reserve fund which represents the Academy Trust's share of the LGPS fund deficit of
£7,802,000, calculated in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS)- 102 by Barnett Waddmgham
LLP. Employer contributions are reviewed every three years from 1 April 2020. .

Fundralsmg

The Trust does not work with the professional fundraisers or companies who carry out fundraising on its behalf.
The Trust has reviewed income generation strategies such as increasing letting's and sports facilities.
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. Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

" The academy trust's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

: . . : 2021 2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) ‘ . 4,233,866 4,448,087
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh): ;

Gas : : ) ‘ _ ' . 628 639
Transport fuel : . . ’ - 3 3
- Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes.of CO2 equivalent): ' v _ '
Purchased electricity . : . ' : . 189 i 189 o
- Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): =~ - . 189 . " 189
intensity ratio: , . . , )
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupi_l . ' 0.26 0.27

The academy trust has followed and used the following quantification and reporting' methodologies:

e * the2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;
the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard; and
. the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

" The chosen intensity ratio is total gross emissions in tonnes of CO2 equivalent per puprl the recommended ratio
for the sector. .

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency
~ We have installed smart metérs across all sites and increased video conferencmg technology for staff meetings,
to reduce the need for travel between sites. 4

Plans for future periods

The Trust plans to continue with the stated aims and objectives in the forthcoming years and will assess the -
longer-term impact of the pandemic. A Curriculum and assessment Board will-be included in the Central
Education Team and will review assessment practice across the Trust together with the wider curriculum offer.
Within this The Trust will further develop the Post 16 offer building the Odyssey 6th offer which combines
elements of both schools together with an exciting Sports offer Further collaborations are expected with local
providers. :

Our training and development programmes will progress further providing the Odyssey Leaders programme and
the Future Teachers programme. Our recruitment process will increasingly incorporate plans to create an even -
more diverse workforce.

Reviews of online learning will be expected to lead to a more sustalnable and Iong term provision to exist post
pandemic and will form part of the longer IT strategy.

The Trustees have agreed Strategic Priorities for a 10 year plan which includee a growth strategy.
*. Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

No funds were held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company Iimited,by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued) .
for the year ended 31 August 2021

Going concern

The Trustees have engaged with the ESFA during the year relating to the legacy issues at King Henry School .
(previously Erith School). This relates to staffing structures and premises related costs since the transfer of the
~school into the trust, with an extremely limited ability to address during the COVID19 pandemic, lockdown and
partial school closures. Also, further costs relating to COVID19 still being assessed alongside the latest ESFA
guidance. A School Resource Management Advisor (SRMA) visit and subsequent report has led to the .
implementation of an Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning tool which has identified areas of cost savings for
the' Trust and its schools. These will be actioned in the next academic year

Wlth this, the trustees are satisfied that the Academy Trust will have adequate resources to continue in

. operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the trustees continue to adopt the going
~concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details relatlng to the adoption of the gomg concern
basis.can be found in the accountlng policies.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

o there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and
~ = that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that informatiqn. ' :

Auditor

The auditor, Kreston Reeves LLP, has mducated its- w1l|mgness to continue in oﬁ"ce The de5|gnated Trustees WI||
propose a motion reappomtmg the audltor ata meetlng of the Trustees.

The Trustees report; incorporating a strateglc report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 7 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Aamer Safdar . Desmond Deehan
‘Chair of Trustees ; Accounting Officer
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Odyssey Trust for Education has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable-
and not absolute assurance agamst material misstatement or loss. . .

As Trustees, we have rewewed and taken account of the gmdance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the: Cheif Executive Officer, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Odyssey Trust for Education and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
statement of trustees’ responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance dunng the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as foIIows

Trustee . a C Meetlngs attended Out of a possible

Desmond Deehan, Chief Executlve Offlcer and 6 6
Accounting Officer
Yunita Ramgoolam
John Paterson, Chairman (to 31 August 2021)
Aamer Safdar, Chairman (from 1 Sept 2021)
Tom Singh Nurwain

" Obiamakanna Squire (appointed 15/02/2021)
Lauren Barwell (appointed 13/07/2021_
Professor Stephen Hailes (resigned 31/01/21)
Vaheesan Sinnathamby (resigned 26/02/2021)
Alex Huda (resigned 15/06/2021)

WOWaAWD OO
MWWaAWHO O

The Board of Trustees received updates from the CEO and reports from Local Governing Body and Chief '
‘Financial Officer. The trust has recruited a National Governance Association adviser onto the Board of Trustees
from September 2021. A rewew of governance will be undertaken during the academic year 2021 22

The Audit, Finance and RISk Commlttee is a sub- commlttee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
monitor and have oversight of responsibility for all financial matters and procedures within the Trust. Its wider
remit is set out in its Term of Reference. :

Attendance during the year at meétings was as follows:

_ Trustee =~ _ ' Meetings attended Out of a possible
. Yunita Ramgoolam - 2 2

John Paterson ' 1 2

Alex Huda (resigned 15/06/2021) 2 2

Tom Singh’ 1 2
: Desmond Deehan (CEO and accountlng offlcer) 2 2
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

" Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money

- As accounting officer, the Cheif Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust deliyers
good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
- educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy
trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

* We have continued to review the Curriculum offer to ensure that courses that were not financially viable
have been withdrawn and to ensure that sufficient curriculum time has been allocated to those subjects
that form a core element of the curriculum for our students. As a result, the post 16 offer has been
reduced to match the Trust’s resources. Similar action has been taken.with the rest of the curriculum,
phasing out Italian as an MFL option and subsequently reducing staffing.

+ The Integrated Curriculum and Financial Planning tool has been introduced during the year. The tool
enables decisions to be made that ensure the curriculum is broad, balanced and also cost effective,
serving the needs to students and ensuring sufficient resources are available to support Pupil Premium
and SEND students. The trust uses the DfE benchmarking toolkit to compare our costs with organlsatlons
of a similar size and nature to inform decision maklng

* The trust operates robust financial contrls with a clear scheme of delegation, requiring orders over £5000
to be supported by three competitive quotes and Headteacher approval. Higher value orders require
approval from the CFO, CEO or Trust Board in the case of Iarge value contracts which are competitively
tendered.

* The trust has moved all gas contracts te Crown Commercial Service purchasing consortium. CCS are
approved by the Cabinet Office and National Audit Office and endorsed by Department for Education, and
this energy purchasing route is only available to public sector organisations. Electricity supplies will also
transfer when existing contracts expire. ' '

- A new. Cleanlng contract was tendered for during the year, with a start date of. September 2021 This will .
secure improved cleaning provision at both schools, achieving better value for money. :

» The trust has centralised the Finance, HR, ICT and Premises teams. This ensures the consistent
application of financial processes, employment practices, cyber secunty and health and safety methods,
as well as achieving economies of scale.

-+ Income streams were impacted by the pandemic and the closure of lettings to third party organisations
during lockdowns. However, as restrictions have been lifted; lettings income has continued to be grow.
The trust also benefits from funding received.from our participation in Trust integration programme which
involves hosting international students W|th|n the Trust day for a fixed number of days .

Value for Money Finavncial Governance and Oversight

Value for money is about achieving the best possible educational and wider societal outcomes through the
economic, efficient and effective use of all the resources in the trust’s charge.

The accountlng officer, ensures that Odyssey Trust for Education-is accountable for ‘taxpayers’ money and
achieves ‘value for money by:

* Avoiding waste and extravagance.

+ Ensuring the organisation is carefully structured.

» Ensuring the organisation has sound systems of financial governance.

* Ensuring that there are sound financial controls in place for income and expendlture and that all goods
and services are procured in an open and transparent way.

. Ensunng that financial records are up to date management accounts are prepared on a regularly baS|s
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of value for money (continued)

« Ensuring that Trustees receive management accounts regularly o

+ Ensuring that there are robust controls for payroll arrangements and segregation of duty for all involved in
the process. S
« Ensuring that segregation of duty applies within the ﬁnance department

« Ensuring that all financial transactions represent value for money and procurement procedures are
followed with particular attention paid to areas of large spending and capital projects.

« Ensuring that we have arrangements for internal audit to carry out-a service that further safeguards the
trustees.

+ Ensuring that our bulldnng is let to the local communlty and raises additional funds in support of the
development of the Trust. '

The accounting offlcer has ensured that the Trust's flnances have been managed in a'transparent and effective -
-way and that financial records have been monitored, evaluated, reviewed and audited by our internal and
external auditors. '

We have identified that increased costs coupled with reduced income places the Trust in a challenging situation
regarding financial stablllty Much of these factors are outside the Trust’s control, such as increased on-costs for
staffing and changes to the funding of post 16 students. However, we have taken a robust approach to
managing these challenges by continuing to review the curriculum and staffing levels and increasing numbers in
the sixth form. Collaboration with other Grammar School s has enabled useful benchmarking and cost saving
exercises.

.

The purpose of-the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of

failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
‘and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in-Odyssey Trust for Education for
the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and frnancral
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed’ together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trustees. -

The risk and control framework .
The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

e . comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
"~ which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure

~ programmes : ’

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capltal investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks '
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement: (continued) .
The risk and control framework (continued) '

The Board of Trustees hasﬁ decided to buy-in an internal audit servie_e from Bishop Fleming LLP

The. scope of the internal review includes giving advuce on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the Academy Trust's financial systems as follows:

* review of purchase system

* review of accounting system controls

* review of payroll system

* review of income system : :

« review of bank and other control account reconciliations

-+ review of governance arrangements

On a semi-annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of control

and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares a short annual

summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusmns
to help the committee consnder actions and assess year on year progress.

" Review of effectiveness :

As accounting officer, the Cheif Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectlveness of the system

of internal control. During the year in questlon the review has been informed by: )
. the work of the reviewer,; .

. the work of the external auditor; o

. the school resource management self-assessment tool;

. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
"~ and malntenance of the internal control framework. .

The accounting officer has heen advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

.control by the Board of Trustees and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure contmuous improvement of the
system IS in place. :

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2021 and signed on their behaif by:

Aamer Safdar o ‘ . ' ~ Desmond Deehan
Chair of Trustees . : Accounting Officer
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement on Regularify, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Odyssey Trust for Education | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
-consuderatlon I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and: the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to |dent|fy any material irregular or improper
use of all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020. .

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non- compIAia.nce have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
' Trustees and ESFA: :

' Desmond Deehan
Accounting Officer
. Date: 7 December 2021
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

 Statement of Trustees’ responeibilities
for the year ended 31 August 2021

The Trustees (who are also the dlrectors of the chantable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o -observe the methods and principles of the Charmes SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Dlrectlon
2020 to 2021; »

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materlal departures
' disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business. .

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

- the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable-company and hence for taklng
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustee,s are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operatlon the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both: of propriety and of good financial
management. They. are also responsuble for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable .company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatlon and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7 December 2051 and signed on its behalf by:

Aamer Safdar
Chair of Trustees

Page 23



Odyssey Trust for Education
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‘Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Odyssey Trust for
" Education :

Opinion '

We have audited the financial statements of Odyssey Trust for Education (the 'academy trust') for the year
ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of -
cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reportlng Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the "
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our oplnlon the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its -
incoming resources and apphcatuon of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and -

e have been prepared in accordance with the requwements of the Companles Act 2006 the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. .

Based on the work we have performed we have not identified any material uncertainties relatmg to events or
conditions that; individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as
‘a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are descrlbed in the
relevant sections of this report.
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' Independent auditor’'s Report on the fmancual statements to the Members of. Odyssey Trust for
Educatlon (contmued) : .

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the

- annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of th|s other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: »

) the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordarce with appllcable Iegai

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

K] the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

) certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. “we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material. mrsstatement whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Odyssey Trust for
Education (contlnued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, mcludmg fraud is
detailed below:

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud .

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector as a whole, and through discussion with the
Trustees and other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of
noncompliance with laws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety and
employment law. We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the
financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation
of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies
Accounts Direction, Academies Financial Handbook, taxation and pension legislation. We communicated
identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, management bias in
accounting estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and

- buildings and revenue and non-compliance with financial management and governance requirements which
areconsistent with the obligations of public funded bodies. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team
included:

. Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with
and regulations (including health and safety) and fraud, and review of the reports made by management
and internal audit; and

e Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and -

. Identifying and assessing the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent
and detect fraud; and

. Consideration of income streams, completeness of income and compllance with the obligations of funders
including the ESFA

. Testing of internal controls procedures relating to expendlture potentially more susceptible to fraud and

other irregularities including the misuse of public funding in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card
expenditure; and :

. Review of cash and credit card expendlture to confirm no evidence of personal benefit; and

. Challenglng assumptions and Judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates;
and

. Check'ing and reperforming the reconciliation of key control accounts; and

. Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual 6r unexpected relationships, including related
party transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud; and

. Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to

identify any previously undisclosed transactions with related parties outside the normal course of
business; and

. Performing analytical procedures with automated data analytics tools to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships, including related party transactions, that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud; and "

. Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor's Report on the fmanclal statements to the Members- of Odyssey Trust for
Education (continued) :

reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authorltles and

. Review of corporate governance arrangements; and

. Review of interhal controls and physical inspection of tanglble assets susceptlble to fraud or |rregular|ty,
and

. Review of significant and unusual transactlons and evaluatlon of the underlylng fnanmal ratlonale
supporting the transactions; and

. Identifying and- testing journal entries, in particular any manual entries made at the year end for financial
« statement preparation. . :

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including

~ those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of noncompliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professuonal ]udgement and maintain profess1ona|
scept|0|sm throughout the audit. We also: _ . , .

. Identify and assess the risks of material mlsstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is’
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. -Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

‘ are appropriate in the ¢ircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness
of the academy trust's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountlng
estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees.
) Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accountmg and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the academy trust to cease to continue as a going
concern. »

. Evaluate the overall presentatlon structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

~manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Odyssey Trust for Education . . : ‘ b .
(A company limited by ‘guarantee)v '

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Odyssey Trust for
-Education {continued)

~Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
“fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or-assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust
and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

*Wn/ Peevre LXP

Peter Manser FCA DChA (Senior statutory audltor)
for and on behalf of

Kreston Reeves LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor

Chatham.Maritime

20 December 2021
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Odyssey Trust for Education -
(A company limited by guarantee)

"Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Odyssey Trust for Education
and the Education and Skills Funding Agency '

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 9 August 2019 and further to the reqwrements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed .
and income received by Odyssey Trust for Education during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.. :

This report is made solely to Odyssey Trust for Education and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so.that we might state to Odyssey Trust for Education and
ESFA those matters we dre required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Odyssey Trust for Education and ESFA
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

'Respective responsnbilities of Odyssey Trust for Education’s accounting officer and the
reporting accountant ’

The accounting officer is respon5|ble under the requirements of Odyssey Trust for Education's fundlng
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 3 March 2011 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them. _
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

'~ We conducted our engagement in éccordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter. .

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in orderto provide us with sufficient appropriate evndence to express a negative conclusion on
- regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identiﬁed in a reasonable assurance engagement.. Accordingly, we do not express a positivé _opinion. ’

- Our engagement includes examination, on a test basns of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure
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Odyssey Trust for Education
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Independent Reportmg Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Odyssey Trust for Education
and the Educatlon & Skills Fundmg Agency (contlnued)

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusions includes: -

- Reviéewed the evidence used to support the Accountlng Officer's sign off of the regularity statement .

- Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the Funding Agreement

- Reviewed grants have been applied for the purposes intended . s

- Confirmed that internal control procedures exist relating to expenditure incurred of cash and credit cards

- Confirmed items claimed on cash and credit cards are not for personal benefit

- Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related parties

- Reviewed Board of Trustee minutes for declaration of interests =~ :

- Considered whether other income ‘activities are permitted within the Academy Trust's charitable objects:

. - Considered if borrowing agreements, including leases, have been made in accordance with the Academies
Financial Handbook

- Confirmed procurement and tendering procedures exist relating to expendlture and havé been complled with.
- Considered if the Trust's governance arrangements and composmon comply with the Academles Financial
Handbook 2020

Conclusion
" In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the ,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been °

applled to purposes mtended by Parliament and the fi nan0|al transactions do not conform to the authorities WhICh
govern them. . .

‘%,Wn, PReevee A 0?73
Kreston Reeves LLP

Chartered Accountants
Reporting Accountant

Date: 20 December 2021°
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- Odyssey Trust for Education 4
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of financial actnvntles (mcorporatmg mcome and expendlture account)

for the year ended 31 August 2021

Rest'ricfed

Uﬁrestricted Restricted fixed asset . Total Total
funds © funds ~ funds funds funds
: - 2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Note " - £ £ ) £ £ £
Income from: -
Donations and capital ' : . ‘
grants 4 3,737 ‘ - 340,812. 344,549 181,201
Charitable activities ' 5 - 20,508,811 - 20,508,811 18,494,146
Other trading activities 6 516,456 - - 516,456 711,683
Investments 7 344 . - . 344 7,648
Total income 520,537 20,508,811 - 340,812 21,370,160 19,394,678 .
Expenditure on: - o . -
Charitable activities ' 8 21,806 21,961,761 1,446,287 23,429,854 '22,023,359
Total expenditure 21,806 21,961,761 '1,446,_287 23,429,854 22,023,359
Net income/ :
(expenditure) 498,731 (1,452,950) (1,105,475) (2,059,694) (2,628,681) -
" Transfers between funds 19 (932,188) 806,950 125,238 - ' -
Net movement in
funds before other ' ,
recognised gains (433,457) - (646,000) (980,237) (2,059,694)  (2,628,681)
Other recognised . '
gains: _
.Actuarial (losses)/gains
on defined benefit . . . .
pension schemes - 27 - 322,000 - . 322,000 729,000
Net movement in : : : ‘
funds (433,457) (324,000) (980,237) (1,737,694)  (1,899,681) ‘
Reconciliation of
~ funds: .
Total funds brought :
. forward 652,447 (7,478,000) 49,430,947 42,605,394 44,505,075
Net movement in funds (433,457) (324,000) (980’237), (1,737,694) (1,899,681)
- Total funds carried — J— : : —
forward 218,990 (7,802,000) - 48,450,710 . 40,867,700 42,605,394

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 34 to-63 form part of these financial statements.

|
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Odyssey Trust for Education

(A company limited by guarantee)
Registered number: 07844587

Balance sheet
as at 31 August 2021

Fixed assets
" Tangible assets -
Current assets

DebAtors )
"Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

¢ ) N
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
© one year

Net assets excluding pension Iiabilify

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

‘Funds of the academy trust
Restricted funds:

' Fixed asset funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

. Pension reserve

Total restfigted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

- Note

15-

16

17

18

27

19
19
19
19
19

2021 . 2020
£ - £
48,450,710 49,411,208
* 853,397 799,286
930,414 . 1,097,209
1,783,811 1,896,495
(1,500,339) (1,161,809)
283,472 734,686
48,734,182 50,145,894
(64,482) (62,500)
48,669,700 50,083,394
(7,802,000) (7,478,000)
40,867,700 42,605,394
48,450,710 49,430,947
48,450,710 49,430,947
(7,802,000) (7,478,000)
40,648,710 ~ . 41,952,947
218,990 652,447

40,867,700 42,605,394

The financial statements on pages 31 to 63 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 07 - '
December 2021 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Aamer Safdar |
Chair of Trustees

Desmond Deehan
Accounting Officer
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‘Odyssey Trust for Education -
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 August 2021

2021 2020

. ' the £ oo £
Cash flows from operating activities , T ‘
Net cash providefd;_ by/(used in) operating activities R . 21 - 1,900 ‘(761‘,1 14)
Cash flows from imfesting activities - v 4 . ' 23 (156,633) ‘ (738,405)
Cash.flows from finan{cinAg activities | ‘ | 22 | (1 2,662) ‘ ‘31,664‘
Change in ga;h and casﬂ eAqui.vaIentSI'in tI_'ne year _ .‘ (166,795) ' (1 ,467,853)
‘Cash and cash equivalents at the begin‘r;ing of the ye;r B 71,097,209 2,565,062
Cash and cagh equivalents at the end éf thé year 24, 25 ' 930,4‘14 ' 1,097,209/

The notes on pages 34 to 63 form part of these financial statements
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the_financialfstatements
for the year ended 31 August.2021

1.

General information

Odyssey Trust for Education is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity

incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Townley Grammar School, Townley Road, -
Bexleyheath, DA6 7AB. The principal activity of the Academy Trust is to prowde an education for puplls

that satisfies the requwements of the Education Act 2002.

Accounting policies

2.1

2.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,'
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial staltementsl

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities: SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

'Odyssey Trust for Education meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The presentatlon currency is £ sterllng The figures in the financial statements have been rounded to
the nearest £1.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

.the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
-a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation of he financial statements.

The Trustees have engaged with the ESFA during the yeer to resolve the legacy issues at King Henry
Schoo! (previously Erith School), which-were a direct result of inefficient staffing structures and high
premises costs. The Board of Trustees' and Key Management Personnel are currently working on the

-implementation of an approved recovery plan which will be based on the recommendations of the

ESFA SRMA report.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has also been assessed by the Trustees as far as reasonably
possible, due to its unprecedented impact on. the wider economy, it is difficult to evaluate with any
certainty the potential outcomes on the Academy Trust's activities.

However, taking into consideration the UK Government's response and its continued support of
schools, the ESFA support of the Trust, as well as the Academy Trust's implementation of the
recovery plan the Trustees are confident that the Trust has sufficient cash flows to ensure

that it can continue to operate for the foreseeable future. On this basis the Trustees consider it
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the goirig concern basis.’
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Odyssey Trust for Education
/ (A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 August 2021

2,

Accounting policies (continued)

2.3

24

Fund accounting : _

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be 'uséd towards meeting any of the

charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

. Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes

imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds compnse all other restricted funds received with restrictions |mposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Income

All income is recognised when the Academy Trust has entltlement to the funds, the receipt is

) probable and the amount can be measured reliably. .

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance -related conditions are met
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which

" itis receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

a liability.

Capital grants are reébgnised in full when there is an uncoriditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the.restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on

. which they are-expended.

Donations .
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there-are no performance-related conditions)

. where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

2.5

Otheriincome
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it |s receivable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and
the amount of. the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. -The
costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support

. costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated

directly to that activity.. Shared costs which. contribute to more than one activity and support costs
which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and -
depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.: .

Page 35



Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the finaneial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021

2.

Accounting pelicies {continued)

25

2.6

27

2.8

Expenditure (continued)

Charitable activities _
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All expenditure is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount ¢an be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normally upon not|fcat|on of the lnterest pald or payable by the
Bank.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the defmltlon of a- charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains

are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed. assets

.Assets costing £1,500 or more are capntahsed as tangible flxed assets and are carried at cost, net of

depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the ~
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost.and depreciated

- over their: expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding

requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset

.fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on

the relevant-assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestncted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund .
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. Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements -
for the year ended 31 August 2021

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.8

29

Tanglble fixed assets (contmued)-

Deprecna’uon is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold Iand and assets under
construction,  at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a basis over its expected
useful life, as follows: :
y .
Freehold land and buildings - 8 - 50 years straight line basis

. Leasehold land and buildings - --15 - 125 years straight line basis
Furniture and equipment - 4-10vyears straight line basis
Computer equipment - 3 years straight line basis
Motor vehicles - . " - 4 -5 years straight line basis

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on-these assets is not
charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying

value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as |mpa|rments impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activmes :

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

2.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due. .

2.11 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand inclUdes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account. -

"~ 2.12 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past

" event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount

of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised. at the amount that the
Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or-.the amount it has. received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must prowde .

2.13 Provisions '

‘Provisions are revcognlsed when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result A

of a past event which it.is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably. - : . -

- Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where

the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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. Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021

2;

"~ Accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - frade and other debtors are basic financial instruments-and are debt instruments

" measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and- are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and- social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to-be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver

_services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

2.15 Penéions

Retirement. benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of

pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost

is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are

determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective

unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer. scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for

accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the .
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and arée updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, -settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the -
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated

- by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to

discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets

‘and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Notes to the financial statements
forthe year ended 31 August 2021

2,

'Accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments
are received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are not excluded from the:
Statement of financial activities as the Academy Trust has control over the charitable application of
the funds. The Academy Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administrative
costs and this is recognised in the Statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid and
any balances held are dlsclosed in note 31.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and'assumptionls: :

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and Ilabllltles W|th|n the next fnancual year are discussed below.

Multi-employer benefit pension scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for. pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the

.pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial

valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2021. Any differences- between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would |mpact on the carrymg amount of the pension liability.

Tang/ble flxed assets

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of £48,450,710 at the

‘reporting date (see note 15). These assets are stated at their cost less provision for depreciation and

impairment. The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to calculating depreciation for
immaterial- assets acquired. For material assets such as land and buildings the Academy Trust
determines at acquisition reliable estimates for the useful life of the asset, its residual value and
decommissioning costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the expected use of the
acquired asset and market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the Trustees consider whether

- there are any factors such as technological advancements or changes |n market condltlons that indicate a

need to reconsider the estimates.used.

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may'be impaired the Academy Trust.
undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair
value of assets less cost to sell and of their value in use. Wherever possible the estimate of the fair value

" of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The

value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow model, based upon the Academy Trusts'
forecasts for the. foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities  that the Academy
Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance.
The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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3.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (continued)

Critical areas of judgement:

-Lease commitments -

The Academy Trust has entered into a range of lease commitments in respect of plant and equipment.

. The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the Trustees to consider

whether the terms and conditions of each lease are such that the Academy Trust has acquired the risks
and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme
Ce&ain érhp|oyees participate in' a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme with other Academy .
Trusts. in the judgement of the Trustees, the Academy Trust does not have sufficient information on the -

plan assets and liabilities to be able to’ reliably account for its share of the defined ‘obligation and plan
assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, see note 27 for further

details.

Donations and capital grants

Restricted

~ Unrestricted fixed asset Total ‘ Total

‘funds . funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2020

. ‘ £ £ £ . £
Donations i ’ : ) 3,737 12,000 . - 15,737 13,274
. Capital Grants ’ : - - 328,812 328,812 167,927
3737 340,812 344,549 181,201

Total 2020 4 o - 13,274 - 167,927 181,201
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Odyssey Trust for Education

" (A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021

5. Funding for the academy trust's
‘Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2020
A £ £ R
DfE/ESFA grants ‘
~ General Annual Grant - - g 17,820,872 17,820,872' 16,479,744 -
Other DfE/ESFA grants . _
Other DfE/ESFA grants 673,008 673,008 252,797
Teachers pension grant .702,702 702,702 940,284
Pupil premium 668,626 668,626 642,795
: 19,865,208 19,865,268 18,315,620
- Other Government grants C .
Local authority grants ' 222,890 222,890 134,526
o ; © 222,890 222,890 134,526
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA) o
Coronavirus exceptional support - - 44,000
. Summer school funding .130,873 130,873 -
Covid-19 catch up premium 202,760 202,760 -
Covid-19 mass testing income - 87,080 87,080 -
420,713 420,713 44,000
/ ' 20,508,811 20,508,811 18,494,146

Total 2020

18,494,146

18,494,146

Following the reclassification in the Academles Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the academy trust's funding for Universal Infant Free School
Meals and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under.the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as
separate lines under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers.have been reclassiﬂe'd.'

The Trust recelved £202,760 of funding for catch -up premium and costs incurred in respect of this
funding totalled £202 760. . A
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021

6. - Income from other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income
Trip income
Other income

Total 2020

7. Investment income

Bank interest receivable

Total-2020

- 8. Expenditure

Direct costs
" Allocated support costs

Total 2020
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Unrestricted Total’ ‘ Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 . 2020
£ £ £
169,283 169,283 138,488
. 297,496 . - 297,496 279,259
(15,257) (15,257) 184,181
64,934 64,934 109,755
516,456 516,456 711,683
711,683 711,683 .
- Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2020.
£ £ B 3
344 344 7,648
7648 7648
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total -
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £ .
14,7'13,777 - .- - 1,072,287 15,786,064 14,57(-),349
3,188,063 '2,392,893 2,062,834 7,643,790 v 7,453,010
4 17,901,840 2,392,893 A3,135,121 ' 23,429,854 22,023,359
‘16;429,375 2,396,934 3,197,050 22,023,359



Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements . _ - . L
for the year ended 31 August 2021 S .

Total 2020
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14,570,349

9. . Analysis of expeﬁditure'by activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds - funds .
2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Educational oberations 15,786,064 7,643,790 23,429,854 22,023,359
Total 2020 " 14,570,349 7,453,010 22,023,359
Analysis of direct costs
~
Educational Total Total
- operations funds - funds
2021 2021 2020
£ £ £
Staff costs 14-,71 3,777 14,713,777 13,451,006
Depreciation 31 , 759 31,759 156,086
Educational supplies 326,866 326,866 355,408
Technology costs 21,278 _ 21,278 11,000
Examination fees 257,041 257,041~ 241,398
Educational consultancy 435,343 435,343 355,451
15,786,064 - 15>,786,064 14,570,349
14,570,349



Qdyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

- Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021,

9.

10.

' Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension interest cost

Staff costs

- Depreciation

Staff development and recruitment costs '

_ Building maintenance

Rent and rates

’ -Light and heat

Cleaning costs
Catering costs
Computer costs

. Other occupancy costs

Security and travel costs
Legal and prbfessional fees
Insurance l
Other support costs

Total 2020

Net inbome/(expehditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

-Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Fees paid to auditor for:

- audit
- other services
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Total '

Educational Total
operations - funds - funds
2021 2021 2020
£ £ £
129,000 129,000 128,000
3,188,063 3,188,063 2,978,369
1,335,199 1,335,199 1,304,460
219,396 219,396 277,840
. 236,588 236,588 270,860
170,349 170,349 168,691
. 347,808 347,808 331,088
430,424 430,424 442,965
464,105 464,105 413,927
. 281,294 281,294 149,382
131,990 . - 131,990 81,443
30,408 ©~ 30,408 35,240
321,366 321,366 286,765
69,074 69,074 73,680
288,726 288,726 510,300
7643790 7,643,790 7,453,010
7,453,010 7,453,010
2021 2020
£
53,810 18,965
1,366,957 1,460,546
. 22,420 19,925
3,200 1,600

£




Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial stateﬁlents L
for the year ended 31 August 2021

11. . Staff

. a. Staff costs

~  Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries -
- Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Sta.f.f restructuring costs comprise:

Redundahcy payments
Severance payments

Y

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance ‘payrhents

2021 2020 -
: £ 4 £
112,760,210 11,536,846
1,308,924 1,187,630 .
3,401,002 3,198,000
17,470,136 15,922,476
338,984 383,893
92,720 123,006
17,901,840 16,429,375
2021 2020
Y £
82,895 116,519
9,825 6.487
92,720 123,006

Included in staff restructuring costs are non statutory/non-cohtractua! severance péymenfs totalling £9,825
(2020: £6,487). Individually the payments were £7,724 and £2,101 (2020: £6,467, £10 and £10)

c. Staff numbers

The average nbmber of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

Teachers o
Administration and support
Management

" Page 45

2020

2021
No. No.
222 . 227
165 134
6 24
393

385




Odyséey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021
11. Staff {continued)-

" c. Staff numbers (contin_uéd)

The\a.verage headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2021 2020

_ No. No.

Teachers ' ] ) ' ‘ 208 - 192
Admin and support . : ‘ ‘ 99 , 128
Management ' : o ' 6 " 5
313 325
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Odyssey Trust for Education
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 August 2021

11.  Staff (continued) ' ~ .
d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benef ts (excludlng employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2021 2020

' ) No. No
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 » - ' ‘ 12 6
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 L ' 4 6
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 ' : ’ 2
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 ' ' - -
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 . B ' , ' , 2 -

In the band £130,001 - £140,000 ' ' 3 " R

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management

team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension

contributions and employer national.insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
~ their services to the academy trust was £635,568 (2020 - £620,194).

In addition, during the year Mr M Ford and Mr A Pembroke Tallet acted as interim CFO and COO for

Odyssey Trust for Education and for a period formed part of key management personnel: .

. ForMr M Ford Odyssey Trust for Educatlon were mvouced £30 350 (2020 £16,000) for his
services by BMAT Education.

. For Mr A Pembroke Tallett Odyssey Trust for Education were invoice £41,650 (2020 £23 000) for
his serwces by Mr A Pembroke Tallett. :

12. - Trustees' remuneration and expenses .

.. One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

-2021 2020
B o . . _ - £ £
Desmond Deehan, Chief Executive Officer Remuneration 135,000 - 135,000 -
' : o 140,000 140,000
Pension contributions paid . 30,000 - © 30,000 -

\ 35,000 35,000

During the year ended 31 August 2021, expenses totalling £NIL were reimbursed or paid directly to no
Trustee (2020 - £‘450 to one Trustee), for expenditure incurred for his role as CEO.
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13.

14.

Trustees’ and Officers’ insurance -

" The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an

alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and

officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

7/

Central services -

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Executive service (Headteacher-role) -
Management and consultancy
Finance services .

HR services (mternal and external)
School improvement monitoring
Premises services

Legal advice

CPD

Website (via mteractlve schools)
"GDPR

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

- 5% of General Annual Grant funding for each academic year from each school in the academy trust
- In the prior year only an additional 5% of General Annual Grant funding for each academlc year

from King Henry School for school |mprovement
Lead Practitioners salary recharges at £4,541 per month per.academy
Directors recharge at £21,056 per month per academy.

The actual amounts chérged during the year were as follows:

2021 -~ 2020

- £ £

Townley Grammar School 4 . - . 770,130 403,936
King Henry School ' 4 ' > 861,834 900,256

Total

1,631,964 1,304,192
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15.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2020
Additions

Disposals

Tranéfers between classes

At 31 August 2021
Depreciation

At 1 September 2020
Charge for the year

On disposals

At 31 August 2021

Net book value

At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020

Odyssey Trust for Education

(A company limited by guarantee) )

Assets

Long-term Furniture _
Freehold .leasehold under - and . Computer Motor

property property construction equipment equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ . £ I . £ £ £
33,958,536 25,098,096 20,649 1,072,762 813,045 63,770 61,026,858
371,939 - 34,462 - 13,877 65,511 - 485,789
Lo - - - " (109,616) - (109,616)

" 20,649 - (20,649) - R - -
34,351,124 25,132,558 - 1,088,639 768,940 63,770 61,403,031
'8-,223,475 . 1,767,555 - 917,274 647,461 59,885 11,615,650
933,406 281,484 - 71,512 78,440 2,115 1,366,957
- - - B (30,286) - (30,286)
9,156,881 2,049,039 - 988,786 695,615 62,000 12,952,321
25,194,243 23,083,519 - 97,853 73,325 . 1,770 48,450,710
25,735,061 23,330,541 20,649 155,488 165,584 3,885 49,411,208
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15.

16.

17.

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Included within freehold land and buildings is land at a nominal value of £1, reﬂectlng Iegal restrictions as
to its use.

_Included within leasehold Iand and buildings is Iand at a value of £6,728,000 (2020: £6' 728 000)

Leasehold land and buildings compnse Iand and buildings occupled on a 125 year lease granted from.the
London Borough of Bexley. _ : .

Debtors
. 2021 2020
A £ £
Due within one year . :
Trade debtors : ' ‘ . 73,905 ’ 21,553
Other debtors .~ ' ‘ ‘ 167,750 - 278,798
‘Prepayments and accrued income ' - ' 611,742 498,935
853,397 799,286
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2021 - 2020
" Other loans _ , : - 11,235 10,773
Trade creditors . 393,743 383,751
Other taxation and social secunty : 334,850 303,021
Other creditors ) _ . 375,293 284,552

Accruals and deferred income : - .385,218 - 179,712

1,500,339 1,161,809

2021 2020
A £ . £
Deferred income at 1 September 2020 | - 58,456 148,153
Resou'rc_es deferred during the year : ' 184,982 - 58,456
Amounts released from previous periods o ‘ ‘ B (58,456) (148,153) -

184,982 58,456

"+ At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance of £61,837 for trips

delayed due to COVID-19 pandemic, £76,342 for Rates Relief income received relating to 21/22, £4,102
for Jack Petchy award funding, £16,500 for LCEP Funding,. £15,600 Teach First.funding, £6,000
placement income for placements taking place in 21/22, £300 lettings deposits and other deferred income

o £4,301.
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18. Creditors: Amounts falling dué after more than one year

( | 1 . o 2021

. . . £
Other loans ' C . ’ 64,482 .

2020
£

62,500

* Included within other loans are:’
. - £20,000 interest free Salix loan with £17,500 outstanding at'year end
. £27,123 interest free Salix loan with £13,560 outstanding at year end -
*  £50,000 CIF loan with interest at 1.26% with £44,657 outstanding at year end

| These are due to be fully repaid by 31 August 2030.
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19. . Statement of funds

Balance at 1 P S 4 Balance at
September . . . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
© 2020 Income Expenditure in/out "(Losses) 2021
£ £ ‘ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted '

funds _ ’

General Funds . 652,447 520,537 -(21,806) (932,188) - 218,990
Restricted

general funds
General Annual ' : ' S

Grant =~ ' - 17,820,872 - (18,627,822) 806,950 . .
Pupil Premium < - 668,626 (668,626) - e - -
Teachers Pension - : ' -

Grant’ ' - 702,702 (702,702) . - -
Bursary fund . - - 51,596 (51,596) - - -
Other DE/EFSA . :

Grants . - 1,042,125  (1,042,125) - - -
Other Government : : ey

Grants ' - '222,890 - (222,890) - - -
Pension reserve  (7,478,000) - ~ (646,000) . 322,000 (7,802,000)

(7,478,000) " 20,508,811 (21,961,761) 806,950 322,000 (7,802,000)
Restricted fixed

asset funds
' Restricted fixed ' .

asset fund 49,411,208 - (1,446,287) 485,789 - 48,450,710
DfE/ESFA capital . . ‘ B
- grant , 19,739 340,812 - (360,551) - -

49,43’6,947 340,812  (1,446,287) - 125,238 - . 48,450,710‘
Total Restricted : . ‘ :

funds 41,952,947 _ 20,849,623 (23,408,048) 932,188 322,000 40,648,710

Total funds 42,605,394 21,370,160 (23,429,854) . . 322,000 40,867,700

The Speciﬂc purposes for which the funds-are to be épplied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds are applied to the general work of the Academy Trust to support activities inside and

outside the curriculum. ) .

GAG represents funds to be used to cover the normal running costs of the Academy Trust.
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19.

Sta_tement of funds (continued)

Pupil premium funding is provided in order to be used to support drsadvantaged pupils and to assist them
in decreasing the attainment gap ‘between those pupils and their peers

UIFSM supports schools in delivering the legal requirement to offer free school meals to aII receptlon year

- 1and year 2 pupils.

The catch-up premium is a one-off grant fcr the 2020/21 academic year to support-children and young
people to catch up lost time after school closure, with allocations calculated on a per pupil basis, using
census data in line with the general annual grant (GAG).

Teachers' pay and pensron grants are to provide support to schools in respect of the teachers pay

awards.
AV

Other DfE/ESFA grants represents grants provrded for specific purposes, such as rates relied and pe and
sports premium is funding to make additional and sustainable improvements to.the quality of the
PE physrcal activity and sport schools provide.

Other government grants represent those grants provrded for specrflc purposes to provrde addltlonal
support to the puprls where required. :

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents the net book value of tangible fixed assets. Transfers within

‘this section were made to ensure the analysis correctly reflected tangible fixed assets and capital grants

avallable to spend

.The DfE/ESFA capital grants fund is to provide the Academy Trust with its own capital money to ‘address

improvements to bUIIdlngs and other facilities.

‘Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the academy trust was not subject to a limit on

the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2021,
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19. Statement of fhnds (cbntinued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at . A ‘ ' ' Balance at .
1 September : _ Transfers Gains/. 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure © infout (Losses) 2020
. £ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted ) ’ : 4
funds - -
General Funds 870,053 732,605 (218,276) (731,935) - 652,447
Restricted /
general funds
General Annual _ Co : - : .
Grant ‘ 393,020 16,477,104 (17,594,495) = 724371 - - -
.-Pupil Premium - 1,842,026  (1,842,026) - - -
Teachers Pension _ Co '
Grant | g - 134,526 (134,526) . - - - -
Bursary fund - - 40,490 (40,490) - - -
. Pensionreserve ~ (7,474,000) - (733,000) | - 729,000  (7,478,000)
(7,080,980) 18,494,146 (20,344,537) 724,371 $ 729,000  (7,478,000)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted fixed . ‘
asset fund 49,957,776 - (1,460,546) 913,978 o - 49,411,208
DfE/ESFA capital S 2 )
grant © -+ 758,226 167,927 - (906,414) - 19,739
50,716,002 167,927 (1,460,546)» 7,564 - 49,430,947
Total Restricted ' o : : :
funds 43,635,022 18,662,073 (21,805,083) 731,935 729,000 41,952,947
Total funds 44,505,075 19,394,678 (22,023,359) . 729,000 42,605,394
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

.Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were alloééted as follows:

.

2021 2020
£ : £
Odyssey Trust for Education T ' ) (12,232) (30,320)
Townley Grammar School . : . 245,997 458,367
King Henry School _ ' o © (14,775) - 224,400
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve - o , ' 218,990 652,447
Restricted fixed asset fund A ' 48,450,710 49,430,947
Pension reserve ‘ - . (7,802,000) (7,478,000)
Total . | | . 40,867,700 42,605,394

The following academies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit
N 4
Odyssey Trust %or Education - ’ ) . 12,232

King Henry School ’ . ' - _ . 14,775

The reported deficit's are a direct result of historic restructuring costs of the central team that was initially
put in place to support Trust growth and school improvement. . :

The academy trust is taking the following action to return the academies to éurplus:

The Board of Trustees' and Key Management Personnel are currently working to implement the A
recommendations of it's SRMA visit and extensive action has been taken to restructure the Trust's staff

‘and reduce it's costs, the full benefit of which they are expecting to see within the 2021-22 financial year:
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19.  Statement of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy‘
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and -
educational Other - Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies ' depreciation - 2021 2020
£ £ ‘£ £
Odyssey Trust for ) ;

Education - 1,045,517 3,405 377,324 1,426,246 1,347,187
Townley Grammar : ' : ' '

School 5,763,929 2,078,790 404,683 1,058,724 9,306,126 8,686,816
King Henry School 6,695,156 2,447,448 632,440 1,537,181 11,312,225 10,528,810
Academvy trust 12,459,085 . 5,571,755 1,040,528 2,973,229 22,044,597 20,562,813

20. Analysis of net assefs between funds
"~ Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
: Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2021 - 2021 2021 - 2021

£ - £ £ B 3

‘Tangible fixed assets - - 48,450,710 48,450,710
Current assets B 218,990 1,564,821 - 1,783,811
Creditors due within one year: ‘ - (1,500,339) - (1,500,339)
Creditors due in more than one year - (64,482) - (64,482)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (7,802,000) - (7,802,000)
Total 218,990( (7,802,000) 48,450,710 _ 40,867,700
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20.

21.

22,

Analysis of net assets between funds (continued).
Ahalysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 - 2020 2020 2020
- £ - £ £ ' £
 Tangible fixed assets B - 49411208 49,411,208
Current assets ) : : 709,549 ° 1,167,207 19,739 1,896,495 -
Creditors due within one year - 4 (67,102) (1,104,707) . - (1,161,809)
Creditors due in more than one year - : (62,500) - (62,500)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (7,478,000) - (7,478,000)
Total 652,447 » (7,478,000). 49,430,947 42,605,394
Reconciliation of net expenditul;e fo net cash flow from operating activities
~ 2021 2020
: £ £
Net expenditure for the year (as per statement of financial activities) (2,059,694) (2,628,681)
Adjustments for:
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . ' 79,330 S -
Depreciation o : . _ 1,366,957 1,460,546
Capital grants from DfE ‘and other capital income s (328,812) (167,927)
‘Interest receivable . - » : ' ' (344) ~ (7,648)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contrib_utibns payable . 517,000 605,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost : ‘ " 129,000 128,000
(Increase)/decrease in debtors : E . _ - . (54,111) - 286,708
_ Increase/(decrease) in creditors . B 352,574 (437,112)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities ' ‘ R 1,900V (761,114)
Césh rowS from financing activities
2021 - 2020
. £ , £
Cash inflows from new borrowing S - 70,000
Repayments of borrowing R . - © (12,062) (38,336)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities o  (12,062) - 31,664

4
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23.

24,

25.

- 26.

Cash flows from investing activities.

Dividends, inferest and rents.from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE .Group

Net cash used in investing activities

‘e

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents -

.Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in"hand
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

Capital commitments

Contrécted for but not provided in these financial statements
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J
2021 2020
£ £
. 344 7,648
(485,789) (913,978)
328,812 167,927
(156,633)  (738,403)
” 2021 2020
. £ £
© 930,414 - . 1,097,209
930,414 1,097,209
CAt1
. September At 31
© 2020 Cash flows August 2021
£ £ £
1,097,209 (166,795) 930,414
(10,773) (462) (11,235)
(62,500) (1,982) (64,482)
1,023,936 (169,239) 854,697
2021 2020
> £
. - 289,109
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.27,

Pension commltments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme

. England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
"(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Bexley. Both are multi-employer

defined benefit schemes.:

\

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contributions amountmg to £277, 433 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020 £153 254)

and are included within creditors. .

Teachers'’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension -
benefits are paid by publlc funds provided by Parhament

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, -
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Educatlon on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are: .

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (mcludmg a 0.08% admlmstratlon
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensuons currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
- together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real -earnings growth is assumed to be. 22% The
assumed nominal rate of retum mcludmg earnings growth is 4.45%. :

The next valuation result is due to be |mplemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,109,828 (2020 - £1;867,31 1).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www. teacherspensrons co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers- pensnons -valuation- report aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi- -employer pension scheme The

academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme: The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Page 59



Odyssey Trust for Education’

" (A company limited by guarantee) '

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2021

27.

Pension commitments (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS .is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-

- administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £744,000 (2020 -

£830,000), of which employer's - contributions totalled £596,000 (2020 - £659,000) and employees'

_contributions totalled £ 148,000 (2020 - £171,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.4
- 20.3 per cent for employers and 5.5 to 12. 5 per cent for employees .

As descrlbed in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were. eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred_on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
academy trust at the balance sheet date

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary' of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the

" Department for Education. The guarantee came mto force on 18 July 2013.

~ Principal actuarial assumptions

2021 2020

v . _ ) 4 ‘ % - %
Rate of increase in salaries‘ - . 4.2 . 3.9
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation - ) ' ' 2.8 2.5
Discount.rate for scheme liabilities. ' : 1.7 .18

Inflation assumption (CPI) : . . 2.7 : 2.4

The current mortality assumptrons include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in mortalrty rates
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

- 2021 2020

. , Years Years
Retiring today _ . ' '
~ Males o ' - , . . 225 22.4
.Females : B : .. 252 251
Retiring in 20 years : . C L '
Males - : - B o 244 - . 24

Females . ) : ‘ ) . 27.2 271
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27. Peﬁsjon commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

‘Discount rate -0.1% )
Mortality‘assumption - 1 year.increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPlrate +0.1%

CPlrate -0.1%

Share of scheme a‘ssetsi

‘ o o
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Other bonds !
Government bonds -
Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Other assets -

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,844,000 (2020 - £478,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost -
Past service cost

‘ Intere‘st.incomé
Interest cost . -

Benefit changes, gain/(loss) on curtailment and gain/(loss) on settlement

" Administrative expenses

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities
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2021 - 2020
£000 £000
(431) (386)

439 393
. 770 624
- (746) (606)
439 392
(431) (385)

2021 2020
. £ £
4,876,000 6,884,000
12,975,000 2,341,000
. 2,223,000 1,652,000
1,743,000 1,377,000
1,615,000 137,000
2,559,000 1,377,000
15,991,000 13,768,000
2021 2020
£ £
1,084,000 . 1,062,000
~ - 24,000
(251,000) . (235,000)
380,000 363,000
— 150,000
29,000 28,000

- 1,242,000 1,392,000
Ve



' Odyssey Trust for Education

(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statementsi .
for the year ended 31 August 2021

27.

- 28.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2020

Operafing lease commitments

2021
' , £ £
At 1 September 2018 ‘ . : : B 21,246,000 20,336,000
Interest cost - B : ' 380,000 363,000
Employee contributions ’ : S 148,000 171,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) T . . : 1,271,000 (482,000)
" Benefits paid ' . ‘ , (336,000) (378,000)
Past service costs ' , : S . A ‘ - 174,000
' Current service cost ' ' - B . 1,084,000 1,062,000
A'At 31 August 2019 . ' . . : 23,793,000 21,246,000 .
- Changes in the fair value of the acédemy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2021 2020
oo . . ‘ , _ £ £
At 1 September 2018 . . ' 13,768,000 12,862,000
Interest income : - ‘ - 4 : ‘ . 251,000 235,000
Actuarial gains _ : 1,593,000 247,000
.Employer contributions : ' e o _ 596,000 - 659,000
- Employee contributions ' ‘ _ 148,000 171,QOO
Benefits paid : : o o A o (336,000) (378,000)
Administrative expenses ' (29,000) (28,000)
At31August2019 . - 15991,000 13,768,000

At 31 August 2021 the academy trust-had commitments to make future minimum Iease payments under

non- cancellable -operating leases as follows:

2021 2020
. ‘ £ £
Not later than 1 year : . 4 A 3 32,414 21,348
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years o : ’ 11,036 38,607
~ 43,450 59,955
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29.

30.

31.

32.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member. : .

Related party transactions

meg to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactlons

During the year Mrs J Deehan, the wife of Mr D Deehan (a Director) was employed at Odyssey Trust for

‘Education. J Deehan's appointment was made in open competition and D Deehan was not involved

in the decision-making process regarding appointment. J Deehan is paid within the normal pay scale for
herrole and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2021 the academy trust received.£57,745 (2020: £89,831) and disbursed £51,596
(2020: £40,288) from the fund. An amount of £128,098 (2020: £121,949) is mcluded in other creditors
relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA.

Controlling party

The academy trust is run by the management team on a day to day basis. Strateglc decisions are made
by the Board of Trustees. There is no ultimate controlling party
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